

# Namibia

# Admiralty Court Act, 1861

Chapter 10

Legislation as at 27 August 1881

FRBR URI: /akn/na/act/1861/cap10/eng@1881-08-27

There may have been updates since this file was created.

PDF created on 13 May 2024 at 10:38.

Collection last checked for updates: 8 May 2024.

# Check for updates



# About this collection

The legislation in this collection has been reproduced as it was originally printed in the Government Gazette, with improved formatting and with minor typographical errors corrected. All amendments have been applied directly to the text and annotated. A scan of the original gazette of each piece of legislation (including amendments) is available for reference.

This is a free download from the Laws. Africa Legislation Commons, a collection of African legislation that is digitised by Laws. Africa and made available for free.

www.laws.africa info@laws.africa

There is no copyright on the legislative content of this document.

This PDF copy is licensed under a Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 License (CC BY 4.0). Share widely and freely.

# Admiralty Court Act, 1861

# Contents

1. Short title	. 2
2. Colonial Courts of Admiralty	. 2
3. Power of Colonial legislature as to Admiralty jurisdiction	. 3
4. Reservation of Colonial law for Her Majesty's assent	. 3
5. Local Admiralty appeal	. 3
6. Admiralty appeal to the Queen in Council	. 3
7. Rules of court	. 4
8. Droits of Admiralty and of the Crown	. 4
9. Power to establish Vice-Admiralty Court	. 5
10. Power to appoint a vice-admiral	. 6
11. Exception of Channel Islands and other possessions	. 6
12. Application of Act to courts under Foreign Jurisdiction Acts	. 6
13. Rules for procedure in slave trade matters	. 6
14. Orders in Council	. 6
15. Interpretation	. 6
16. Commencement of Act	. 7
17. Abolition of Vice-Admiralty Courts	7
18. Repeal	. 8
Schedule	8



# Republic of Namibia Annotated Statutes

# Admiralty Court Act, 1861 Chapter 10

Published on 17 May 1861

Commenced on 17 May 1861 by Colonial Courts of Admiralty Act, 1890

[This is the version of this document from 27 August 1881 and includes any amendments published up to 8 May 2024.]

[Amended by <u>The Statute Law Revision and Civil Procedure Act</u>, 1875 (Chapter 66) on 11 August 1875] [Amended by <u>Statute Law Revision and Civil Procedure Act</u>, 1881 (Chapter 59) on 27 August 1881]

[APPLICABILITY TO SOUTH WEST AFRICA: The Act was applied to South West Africa by virtue of Administration of Justice Proclamation 21 of 1919. See Freiremar SA v The Prosecutor-General of Namibia & Dy Another 1996 NR 18 (HC) at 28A-C: "As was correctly found by Levy J the South African Admiralty Jurisdiction Regulation Act, Act 105 of 1983 does not apply to Namibia. However, prior to Act 105 of 1983 Admiralty Jurisdiction was exercised by South African Courts by virtue of the provisions of s 2 of the Colonial Courts of Admiralty Act 1890. (See in this regard Trivett & Dry Co (Pty) Ltd and Others v Wm Brandt's Sons & Dry Co Ltd and Others 1975 (3) SA 423 (A).) The provisions of the Colonial Courts of Admiralty Act 1890 was [sic] therefore part of the statute law of the Cape of Good Hope when by s 1(1) of Proc 21 of 1919 the law as existing and applied in that province was introduced into the then South-West Africa. (See further R v Goseb 1956 (2) SA 696 (SWA). S v Redondo 1992 NR 133 (SC) also 1993 (2) SA 528 (NmS) and The Law of Shipping and Carriage in South Africa, 3rd ed by Bamford, p 4 footnote 27.) In cases such as Tittel v The Master of The High Court 1921 SWA 58 and Krueger v Hoge 1954 (4) SA 248 (SWA) it was decided that statutes which applied in the Cape as at 1 January 1920 also apply in South-West Africa by virtue of the provisions of Proc 21 of 1919. This was again reaffirmed in the Redondo case supra at 150 (NR) and 539I-540B (SA). Admiralty law as applied by the Colonial Courts of Admiralty Act, 1890, is therefore part of the Namibian law." TRANSFER TO SOUTH WEST AFRICA: The administration of admiralty

law does not appear to have been transferred to South West Africa.

In South Africa, the Colonial Courts of Admiralty Act, 1980 was repealed in so far as it relates to prizes by the Prize Jurisdiction Act 3 of 1968 (RSA GG 2000). This Act was made applicable to South West Africa by section 6, which states "This Act and any amendment thereof shall apply also in the territory of South-West Africa, including the Eastern Caprivi Zipfel referred to in section 3 of the South-West Africa Affairs Amendment Act, 1951 (Act No. 55 of 1951), and in relation to all persons in that portion of the said territory known as the "Rehoboth Gebiet" and defined in the First Schedule to Proclamation No. 28 of 1923 of the said territory." However, Act 3 of 1968 never came into force in respect of South Africa or South West Africa. The Colonial Courts of Admiralty Act, 1980 was repealed "in so far as it applies in relation to the Republic, except in so far as it relates to prize matters", by the Admiralty Jurisdiction Regulation Act 105 of 1983 (RSA GG 8891) – which was not made applicable to South West Africa.]

# **ACT**

An Act to amend the Law respecting the exercise of Admiralty Jurisdiction in Her Majesty's Dominions and elsewhere out of the United Kingdom.

BE IT ENACTED by the Queen's most Excellent Majesty, by and with the advice and consent of the Lords Spiritual and Temporal, and Commons, in this present Parliament assembled, and by the Authority of the same, as follows:

[Capitalisation throughout is reproduced as it appears in the British law, as published on the UK Government website: www.legislation.gov.uk.]

# 1. Short title

This Act may be cited as the Colonial Courts of Admiralty Act, 1890.

# 2. Colonial Courts of Admiralty

- (1) Every court of law in a British possession, which is for the time being declared in pursuance of this Act to be a court of Admiralty, or which, if no such declaration is in force in the possession, has therein original unlimited civil jurisdiction, shall be a court of Admiralty, with the jurisdiction in this Act mentioned, and may for the purpose of that jurisdiction exercise all the powers which it possesses for the purpose of its other civil jurisdiction, and such court in reference to the jurisdiction conferred by this Act is in this Act referred to as a Colonial Court of Admiralty. Where in a British possession the Governor is the sole judicial authority, the expression "court of law" for the purposes of this section includes such Governor.
- (2) The jurisdiction of a Colonial Court of Admiralty shall, subject to the provisions of this Act, be over the like places, persons, matters, and things, as the Admiralty jurisdiction of the High Court in England, whether existing by virtue of any statute or otherwise, and the Colonial Court of Admiralty may exercise such jurisdiction in like manner and to as full an extent as the High Court in England, and shall have the same regard as that Court to international law and the comity of nations.

[Subsection (2) makes the Admiralty Court Act, 1840, and the Admiralty Court Act, 1861 applicable to Namibia. See Freiremar SA v The Prosecutor-General of Namibia & Description of Namibia & See Freiremar SA v The Prosecutor-General of Namibia & Description of Namibia & Description of Namibia Ports Authority v M V 'Rybak Leningrada' 1996 NR 355 (HC) at 361; International Underwater Sampling Ltd & Description of Namibia Ports Authority v MEP Systems Pte Ltd 2010 (2) NR 468 (HC) at para 1, 2011 (1) NR 81 (SC) at para 1; The Shipping Corporation of India Ltd v Evdomon Corporation and Another 1994 (1) SA 550 (A) at 559H-560C; and Trivett & Co, (Pty) Ltd and Others v WM Brandt's Sons & Co Ltd and Others 1975 (3) SA 423 (A).]

(3) Subject to the provisions of this Act any enactment referring to a Vice-Admiralty Court, which is contained in an Act of the Imperial Parliament or in a Colonial law, shall apply to a Colonial Court of Admiralty, and be read as if the expression "Colonial Court of Admiralty" were therein substituted for "Vice-Admiralty Court" or for other expressions respectively referring to such Vice-Admiralty Courts or the judges thereof, and the Colonial Court of Admiralty shall have jurisdiction accordingly.

## Provided as follows:

- (a) Any enactment in an Act of the Imperial Parliament referring to the Admiralty jurisdiction of the High Court in England, when applied to a Colonial Court of Admiralty in a British possession, shall be read as if the name of that possession were therein substituted for England and Wales; and
- (b) A Colonial Court of Admiralty shall have under the Naval Prize Act, 1864 [27 & 28 Vict. c. 25] and under the Slave Trade Act, 1873 [36 & 27 Vict. c. 88], and any enactment relating to prize or the slave trade, the jurisdiction thereby conferred on a Vice-Admiralty Court and not the jurisdiction thereby conferred exclusively on the High Court of Admiralty or the High Court of Justice; but, unless for the time being duly authorised, shall not by

virtue of this Act exercise any jurisdiction under the Naval Prize Act, 1864, or otherwise in relation to prize; and

# [The bracketed references appear as marginal notes in the British legislation.]

- (c) A Colonial Court of Admiralty shall not have jurisdiction under this Act to try or punish a person for an offence which according to the law of England is punishable on indictment; and
- (d) A Colonial Court of Admiralty shall not have any greater jurisdiction in relation to the laws and regulations relating to Her Majesty's Navy at sea, or under any Act providing for the discipline of Her Majesty's Navy, than may be from time to time conferred on such court by Order in Council.
- (4) Where a Court in a British possession exercises in respect of matters arising outside the body of a county or other like part of a British possession any jurisdiction exercisable under this Act, that jurisdiction shall be deemed to be exercised under this Act and not otherwise.

# 3. Power of Colonial legislature as to Admiralty jurisdiction

The legislature of a British possession may by any Colonial law,

- (a) declare any court of unlimited civil jurisdiction, whether original or appellate, in that possession to be a Colonial Court of Admiralty, and provide for the exercise by such court of its jurisdiction under this Act, and limit territorially, or otherwise, the extent of such jurisdiction; and
- (b) confer upon any inferior or subordinate court in that possession such partial or limited Admiralty jurisdiction under such regulations and with such appeal (if any) as may seem fit:

Provided that any such Colonial law shall not confer any jurisdiction which is not by this Act conferred upon a Colonial Court of Admiralty.

# 4. Reservation of Colonial law for Her Majesty's assent

Every Colonial law which is made in pursuance of this Act, or affects the jurisdiction of or practice or procedure in any court of such possession in respect of the jurisdiction conferred by this Act, or alters any such Colonial law as above in this section mentioned, which has been previously passed, shall, unless previously approved by Her Majesty through a Secretary of State, either be reserved for the signification of Her Majesty's pleasure thereon, or contain a suspending clause providing that such law shall not come into operation until Her Majesty's pleasure thereon has been publicly signified in the British possession in which it has been passed.

## 5. Local Admiralty appeal

Subject to rules of court under this Act, judgements of a court in a British possession given or made in the exercise of the jurisdiction conferred on it by this Act, shall be subject to the like local appeal, if any, as judgements of the court in the exercise of its ordinary civil jurisdiction, and the court having cognisance of such appeal shall for the purpose thereof possess all the jurisdiction by this Act conferred upon a Colonial Court of Admiralty.

# 6. Admiralty appeal to the Queen in Council

(1) The appeal from a judgement of any court in a British possession in the exercise of the jurisdiction conferred by this Act, either where there is as of right no local appeal or after a decision on local appeal, lies to Her Majesty the Queen in Council.

- (2) Save as may be otherwise specially allowed in a particular case by Her Majesty the Queen in Council, an appeal under this section shall not be allowed -
  - (a) from any judgment not having the effect of a definitive judgment unless the court appealed from has given leave for such appeal, nor
  - (b) from any judgment unless the petition of appeal has been lodged within the time prescribed by rules, or if no time is prescribed within six months from the date of the judgment appealed against, or if leave to appeal has been given then from the date of such leave.
- (3) For the purpose of appeals under this Act, Her Majesty the Queen in Council and the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council shall, subject to rules under this section, have all such powers for making and enforcing judgements, whether interlocutory or final, for punishing contempts, for requiring the payment of money into court, or for any other purpose, as may be necessary, or as were possessed by the High Court of Delegates before the passing of the Act transferring the powers of such court to Her Majesty in Council, or as are for the time being possessed by the High Court in England or by the court appealed from in relation to the like matters as those forming the subject of appeals under this Act.
- (4) All Orders of the Queen in Council or the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council for the purposes aforesaid or otherwise in relation to appeals under this Act shall have full effect throughout Her Majesty's dominions, and in all places where Her Majesty has jurisdiction.
- (5) This section shall be in addition to and not in derogation of the authority of Her Majesty in Council or the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council arising otherwise than under this Act, and all enactments relating to appeals to Her Majesty in Council or to the powers of Her Majesty in Council or the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council in relation to those appeals, whether for making rules and orders or otherwise, shall extend, save as otherwise directed by Her Majesty in Council, to appeals to Her Majesty in Council under this Act.

# 7. Rules of court

- (1) Rules of court for regulating the procedure and practice (including fees and costs) in a court in a British possession in the exercise of the jurisdiction conferred by this Act, whether original or appellate, may be made by the same authority and in the same manner as rules touching the practice, procedure, fees, and costs in the said court in the exercise of its ordinary civil jurisdiction respectively are made:
  - Provided that the rules under this section shall not, save as provided by this Act, extend to matters relating to the slave trade, and shall not (save as provided by this section) come into operation until they have been approved by Her Majesty in Council, but on coming into operation shall have full effect as if enacted in this Act, and any enactment inconsistent therewith shall, so far as it is so inconsistent, be repealed.
- (2) It shall be lawful for Her Majesty in Council, in approving rules made under this section, to declare that the rules so made with respect to any matters which appear to Her Majesty to be matters of detail or of local concern may be revoked, varied, or added to without the approval required by this section.
- (3) Such rules may provide for the exercise of any jurisdiction conferred by this Act by the full court, or by any judge or judges thereof, and subject to any rules, where the ordinary civil jurisdiction of the court can in any case be exercised by a single judge, any jurisdiction conferred by this Act may in the like case be exercised by a single judge.

# 8. Droits of Admiralty and of the Crown

(1) Subject to the provisions of this section nothing in this Act shall alter the application of any droits of Admiralty or droits of or forfeitures to the Crown in a British possession; and such droits and forfeitures, when condemned by a court of a British possession in the exercise of the jurisdiction

- conferred by this Act, shall, save as is otherwise provided by any other Act, be notified, accounted for, and dealt with in such manner as the Treasury from time to time direct, and the officers of every Colonial Court of Admiralty and of every other court in a British possession exercising Admiralty jurisdiction shall obey such directions in respect of the said droits and forfeitures as may be from time to time given by the Treasury.
- (2) It shall be lawful for Her Majesty the Queen in Council by Order to direct that, subject to any conditions, exceptions, reservations, and regulations contained in the Order, the said droits and forfeitures condemned by a court in a British possession shall form part of the revenues of that possession either for ever or for such limited term or subject to such revocation as may be specified in the Order.
- (3) If and so long as any of such droits or forfeitures by virtue of this or any other Act form part of the revenues of the said possession the same shall, subject to the provisions of any law for the time being applicable thereto, be notified, accounted for, and dealt with in manner directed by the Government of the possession, and the Treasury shall not have any power in relation thereto.

# 9. Power to establish Vice-Admiralty Court

- (1) It shall be lawful for Her Majesty, by commission under the Great Seal to empower the Admiralty to establish in a British possession any Vice-Admiralty Court or Courts.
- (2) Upon the establishment of a Vice-Admiralty Court in a British possession, the Admiralty, by writing under their hands and the seal of the office of Admiralty, in such form as the Admiralty direct, may appoint a judge, registrar, marshal, and other officers of the court, and may cancel any such appointment; and in addition to any other jurisdiction of such court, may (subject to the limits imposed by this Act or the said commission from Her Majesty) vest in such court the whole or any part of the jurisdiction by or by virtue of this Act conferred upon any courts of that British possession, and may vary or revoke such vesting, and while such vesting is in force the power of such last-mentioned courts to exercise the jurisdiction so vested shall be suspended.

#### Provided that -

(a) nothing in this section shall authorise a Vice-Admiralty Court so established in India or in any British possession having a representative legislature, to exercise any jurisdiction, except for some purpose relating to prize, to Her Majesty's Navy, to the slave trade, to the matters dealt with by the Foreign Enlistment Act, 1870 [33 & Dict. c. 90], or the Pacific Islanders Protection Acts, 1872[35 & Dict. c. 19] and 1875 [38 & Dict. c. 51], or to matters in which questions arise relating to treaties or conventions with foreign countries, or to international law; and

### [The bracketed references appear as marginal notes in the British legislation.]

- (b) in the event of a vacancy in the office of judge, registrar, marshal, or other officer of any Vice-Admiralty Court in a British possession, the Governor of that possession may appoint a fit person to fill the vacancy until an appointment to the office is made by the Admiralty.
- (3) The provisions of this Act with respect to appeals to Her Majesty in Council from courts in British possessions in the exercise of the jurisdiction conferred by this Act shall apply to appeals from Vice-Admiralty Courts, but the rules and orders made in relation to appeals from Vice-Admiralty Courts may differ from the rules made in relation to appeals from the said courts in British possessions.
- (4) If Her Majesty at any time by commission under the Great Seal so directs, the Admiralty shall by writing under their hands and the seal of the office of Admiralty abolish a Vice-Admiralty Court established in any British possession under this section, and upon such abolition the jurisdiction of any Colonial Court of Admiralty in that possession which was previously suspended shall be revived.

# 10. Power to appoint a vice-admiral

Nothing in this Act shall affect any power of appointing a vice-admiral in and for any British possession or any place therein; and whenever there is not a formally appointed vice-admiral in a British possession or any place therein, the Governor of the possession shall be ex-officio vice-admiral thereof.

# 11. Exception of Channel Islands and other possessions

- (1) The provisions of this Act with respect to Colonial Courts of Admiralty shall not apply to the Channel Islands.
- (2) It shall be lawful for the Queen in Council by Order to declare, with respect to any British possession which has not a representative legislature, that the jurisdiction conferred by this Act on Colonial Courts of Admiralty shall not be vested in any court of such possession, or shall be vested only to the partial or limited extent specified in the Order.

# 12. Application of Act to courts under Foreign Jurisdiction Acts

It shall be lawful for Her Majesty the Queen in Council by Order to direct that this Act shall, subject to the conditions, exceptions, and qualifications (if any) contained in the Order, apply to any Court established by Her Majesty for the exercise of jurisdiction in any place out of Her Majesty's dominions which is named in the Order as if that Court were a Colonial Court of Admiralty, and to provide for carrying into effect such application.

# 13. Rules for procedure in slave trade matters

(1) It shall be lawful for Her Majesty the Queen in Council by Order to make rules as to the practice and procedure (including fees and costs) to be observed in and the returns to be made from Colonial Courts of Admiralty and Vice-Admiralty Courts in the exercise of their jurisdiction in matters relating to the slave trade, and in and from East African Courts as defined by the Slave Trade (East African Courts) Acts, 1873 [36 & Camp; 37 Vict. c. 59] and 1879 [42 & Camp; 43 Vict. c. 38].

# [The bracketed references appear as marginal notes in the British legislation.]

- (2) Except when inconsistent with such Order in Council, the rules of court for the time being in force in a Colonial Court of Admiralty or Vice-Admiralty Court shall, so far as applicable, extend to proceedings in such court in matters relating to the slave trade.
- (3) The provisions of this Act with respect to appeals to Her Majesty in Council, from courts in British possessions in the exercise of the jurisdiction conferred by this Act, shall apply, with the necessary modifications, to appeals from judgements of any East African court made or purporting to be made in exercise of the jurisdiction under the Slave Trade (East African Courts) Acts, 1873 and 1879.

#### 14. Orders in Council

It shall be lawful for Her Majesty in Council from time to time to make Orders for the purposes authorised by this Act, and to revoke and vary such Orders, and every such Order while in operation shall have effect as if it were part of this Act.

# 15. Interpretation

In the construction of this Act, unless the context otherwise requires,-

The expression "representative legislature" means, in relation to a British possession, a legislature comprising a legislative body of which at least one half are elected by inhabitants of the British possession.

The expression "unlimited civil jurisdiction" means civil jurisdiction unlimited as to the value of the subject-matter at issue, or as to the amount that may be claimed or recovered.

The expression "judgment" includes a decree, order, and sentence.

The expression "appeal" means any appeal, rehearing, or review; and the expression "local appeal" means an appeal to any court inferior to Her Majesty in Council.

The expression "Colonial law" means any Act, ordinance, or other law having the force of legislative enactment in a British possession and made by any authority, other than the Imperial Parliament or Her Majesty in Council, competent to make laws for such possession.

#### 16. Commencement of Act

(1) This Act shall, save as otherwise in this Act provided, come into force in every British possession on the first day of July one thousand eight hundred and ninety-one.

Provided that -

- (a) This Act shall not come into force in any of the British possessions named in the First Schedule to this Act until Her Majesty so directs by Order in Council, and until the day named in that behalf in such Order; and
- (b) If before any day above mentioned rules of court for the Colonial Court of Admiralty in any British possession have been approved by Her Majesty in Council, this Act may be proclaimed in that possession by the Governor thereof, and on such proclamation shall come into force on the day named in the proclamation.
- (2) The day upon which this Act comes into force in any British possession shall, as regards that British possession, be deemed to be the commencement of this Act.
- (3) If, on the commencement of this Act in any British possession, rules of court have not been approved by Her Majesty in pursuance of this Act, the rules in force at such commencement under the Vice-Admiralty Courts Act, 1863 [26 & Dick Courts Courts of Admiralty Courts or Courts of Admiralty in India, including any rules made with reference to proceedings instituted on behalf of Her Majesty's ships, shall, so far as applicable, have effect in the Colonial Court or Courts of Admiralty of such possession, and in any Vice-Admiralty Court established under this Act in that possession, as rules of court under this Act, and may be revoked and varied accordingly; and all fees payable under such rules may be taken in such manner as the Colonial Court may direct, so however that the amount of each such fee shall so nearly as practicable be paid to the same officer or person who but for the passing of this Act would have been entitled to receive the same in respect of like business. So far as any such rules are inapplicable or do not extend, the rules of court for the exercise by a court of its ordinary civil jurisdiction shall have effect as rules for the exercise by the same court of the jurisdiction conferred by this Act.

# [The bracketed reference appears as a marginal note in the British legislation.]

(4) At any time after the passing of this Act any Colonial law may be passed, and any Vice-Admiralty Court may be established and jurisdiction vested in such Court, but any such law, establishment, or vesting shall not come into effect until the commencement of this Act.

## 17. Abolition of Vice-Admiralty Courts

On the commencement of this Act in any British possession, but subject to the provisions of this Act, every Vice-Admiralty Court in that possession shall be abolished; subject as follows,-

(1) All judgements of such Vice-Admiralty Court shall be executed and may be appealed from in like manner as if this Act had not passed, and all appeals from any Vice-Admiralty Court pending at the commencement of this Act shall be heard and determined, and the judgement thereon executed as nearly as may be in like manner as if this Act had not passed:

- (2) All proceedings pending in the Vice-Admiralty Court in any British possession at the commencement of this Act shall, notwithstanding the repeal of any enactment by this Act, be continued in a Colonial Court of Admiralty of the possession in manner directed by rules of court, and, so far as no such rule extends, in like manner, as nearly as may be, as if they had been originally begun in such court:
- (3) Where any person holding an office, whether that of judge, registrar, or marshal, or any other office in any such Vice-Admiralty Court in a British possession, suffers any pecuniary loss in consequence of the abolition of such court, the Government of the British possession, on complaint of such person, shall provide that such person shall receive reasonable compensation (by way of an increase of salary or a capital sum, or otherwise) in respect of his loss, subject nevertheless to the performance, if required by the said Government, of the like duties as before such abolition:
- (4) All books, papers, documents, office furniture, and other things at the commencement of this Act belonging, or appertaining to any Vice-Admiralty Court, shall be delivered over to the proper office of the Colonial Court of Admiralty or be otherwise dealt with in such manner as, subject to any directions from her Majesty, the Governor may direct:
- (5) Where, at the commencement of this Act in a British possession, any person holds a commission to act as advocate in any Vice-Admiralty Court abolished by this Act, either for Her Majesty or for the Admiralty, such commission shall be of the same avail in every court of the same British possession exercising jurisdiction under this Act, as if such court were the court mentioned or referred to in such commission.

# 18. Repeal

The Acts specified in the Second Schedule to this Act shall, to the extent mentioned in the third column of that schedule, be repealed as respects any British possession as from the commencement of this Act in that possession, and as respects any courts out of Her Majesty's dominions as from the date of any Order applying this Act:

Provided that -

- (a) Any appeal against a judgement made before the commencement of this Act may be brought and any such appeal and any proceedings or appeals pending at the commencement of this Act may be carried on and completed and carried into effect as if such repeal had not been enacted; and
- (b) All enactments and rules at the passing of this Act in force touching the practice, procedure, fees, costs, and returns in matters relating to the slave trade in Vice-Admiralty courts and in East African courts shall have effect as rules made in pursuance of this Act, and shall apply to Colonial Courts of Admiralty, and may be altered and revoked accordingly.

## Schedule

#### First Schedule

British Possessions in which Operation of Act is Delayed

New South Wales.

Victoria.

St. Helena.

British Honduras.

Second Schedule

**Enactments Repealed** 

Section and Chapter.	Title of Act.	Extent of Repeal.
56 Geo. 3. c. 82.	An Act to render valid the judicial Acts of Surrogates of Vice-Admiralty Courts abroad, during vacancies in office of Judges of such courts.	The whole Act.
2 & 3 Will. 4. c. 51.	An Act to regulate the practice and the fees in the Vice-Admiralty Courts abroad, and to obviate doubts as to their jurisdiction.	The whole Act.
3 & 4 Will. 4. c. 41.	An Act for the better administration of justice in His Majesty's Privy Council.	Section two.
6 & amp; 7 Vict. c. 38.	An Act to make further regulations for facilitating the hearing appeals and other matters by the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council.	In section two, the words "or from any Admiralty or Vice-Admiralty Court," and the words "or the Lords Commissioners of Appeals in prize causes or their surrogates." In section three, the words "and the High Court of Admiralty of England," and the words "and from any Admiralty or Vice-Admiralty Court." In section five, from the first "the High Court of Admiralty" to the end of the section. In section seven, the words "and from Admiralty or Vice-Admiralty Courts." Sections nine and ten, so far as relates to maritime causes. In section twelve, the words "or maritime." In section fifteen the words "and Admiralty and Vice-Admiralty."
7 & 8 Vict. c. 69.	An Act for amending an Act passed in the fourth year of the reign of His late Majesty, intituled, "An Act for the better administration of justice in His Majesty's Privy Council," and to extend its jurisdiction and powers.	In section twelve, the words "and from Admiralty and Vice-Admiralty Courts," and so much of the rest of the section as relates to maritime causes.
26 Vict. c. 24.	The Vice-Admiralty Courts Act, 1863.	The whole Act.

30 & Samp; 31 Vict. c. 45.	The Vice-Admiralty Courts Act Amendment Act, 1867.	The whole Act.
36 & Samp; 37 Vict. c. 59.	The Slave Trade (East African Courts) Act, 1873.	Sections four and five.
36 & amp; 37 Vict. c. 88.	The Slave Trade Act, 1873 -	Section twenty as far as relates to the taxation of any costs, charges, and expenses which can be taxed in pursuance of this Act.In section twenty-three the words "under the Vice-Admiralty Courts Act, 1863."
38 & amp; 39 Vict. c. 51.	The Pacific Islanders Protection Act, 1875.	So much of section six as authorises Her Majesty to confer Admiralty jurisdiction on any court.